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          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I thank you for

          3  being here. We have five items on the agenda, right?

          4  Six items on the agenda, right? So what we're going

          5  to do is we're going to take care of the five items

          6  that are of more interest than the six items, and

          7  since that will take more, you know, being much more

          8  quickly, we can get them done more quickly and

          9  address those items, and then we'll vote on those

         10  five items, and then we'll go to the sixth item and

         11  handle that.

         12                 So let's discuss the five items that

         13  we have. We have Queens. Where is Mike? It's on

         14  tape. It doesn't matter to me. It's okay.

         15                 Queens, Community Board 4, Item

         16  20045004 HKQ. Designation, List Number 348, LP-2131

         17  by the Landmarks Preservation Commission pursuant to

         18  Section 3020 of the New York City Charter of the

         19  Newtown High School located at 48-01 90th Street,

         20  also known as, 48-02 91st Street, Block 1849, Lot 1.

         21                 Brooklyn Community Board 1. Item

         22  20045005 HKK. Designation, List Number 348, LP-2130,

         23  by the Landmarks Preservation Commission, pursuant

         24  to Section 3020 of the New York City Charter of the

         25  Erasmus Hall High School located at 899-925 Flatbush
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          2  Avenue, also known as 2212-2240 Bedford Avenue,

          3  Block 5130, Lot 10; and

          4                 Manhattan Community Board 5. Item

          5  20045001 HKM. And that was LU No. 507. Designation,

          6  List Number 347, LP-2124, by the Landmarks

          7  Preservation Commission pursuant to Section 3020 of

          8  the New York City Charter of the former Hollander

          9  and Company Building, located at 3 East 57th Street,

         10  Block 1293, Lot 5.

         11                 LU Number 511. Community Board 2.

         12  20045003 HKM. Designation, List Number 348, LP-2129,

         13  by the Landmarks Preservation Commission pursuant to

         14  Section 3020 of the New York City Charter of the

         15  Noho East Historic District generally bounded by the

         16  Bowery to the east, Houston Street to the south, a

         17  line midpoint between Bleecker and Bond Streets to

         18  the north and Lafayette Street to the west.

         19                 LU Number 512. Brooklyn Community

         20  Board 1. 20045006 HKK. Designation, List Number 348,

         21  LP-2135, by the Landmarks Preservation Commission

         22  pursuant to Section 3020 of the New York City

         23  Charter of the Williamsburg Houses located at

         24  229-247 Graham Avenue, Block 3025, Lot 46; Block,

         25  3026, Lot 1; Block 3027, Lot 1.
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          2                 Correction. Brooklyn Community Board

          3  14. Preconsidered. It was item number 20045005 HKK,

          4  was Brooklyn Community Board 14, not Community Board

          5  1. So, on those five items, is there anyone here

          6  that's testifying on those five items? On those five

          7  items?

          8                 So, Diane Jackier of the Landmarks

          9  Preservation Commission can come up, please. And

         10  just for my colleagues, I know that you've gotten

         11  this wonderful grid that was created by our

         12  wonderful Land Use staff, which states clearly, at

         13  least on the first item, that it was approved by the

         14  community board. And on the other, we see that on

         15  three of the other items we didn't get anything from

         16  the community board. We have on one of them that

         17  they did support it as well. And I look forward to

         18  hearing your comments.

         19                 Now, how are we going to do this? Are

         20  you going to be testifying about each one of these

         21  things?

         22                 MS. JACKIER: You can tell me how you

         23  want me to do it. I have testimony for all five. And

         24  I can read them, or if there's any specific

         25  questions that you have about one of them, I can
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          2  answer it. It's up to you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Hold on a minute.

          4  Okay, so the way I'd appreciate it, since we have a

          5  number of items on the agenda, is that you can

          6  introduce yourself once. You don't have to say my

          7  name is Diane Jackier more than once, and say what

          8  you do.

          9                 MS. JACKIER: Okay.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: But after that, I

         11  would appreciate it if you highlighted anything that

         12  would be of concern. The historical note of the

         13  properties we have in our possession, you know, in

         14  other words, if you can go through it and just

         15  mention the things that you would think would be of

         16  specific interest, and the opposite, if there were

         17  some concerns or vice versa, or if there's anything

         18  very specific.

         19                 MS. JACKIER: Do you want me to read

         20  you just the public hearing notes that I have?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Yes.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Mr. Chairman?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Yes.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I have no

         25  problem with proceeding with all the projects

                                                            7

          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  together, since there doesn't seem to be too much

          3  controversy on these, however, I do think we should

          4  have the very good reports that they prepare on each

          5  of them, if we're going to do them all together

          6  before we do them. And at the moment I only have

          7  three, so I think we should have all five before we

          8  start.

          9                 I apologize if they were distributed

         10  to the offices. I didn't get them.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Mr. Chairman,

         12  let me just make a qualified remark with regard to

         13  the observation made by my colleague Oliver Koppell.

         14                 Some are not controversial, others

         15  may be.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I think he

         17  separated out that one.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: There are six

         19  items.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay. I just

         21  want to be clear.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Okay, so if you

         23  can highlight those items that were mentioned, I'd

         24  appreciate that.

         25                 MS. JACKIER: Good morning, Council
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          2  members. My name is Diane Jackier, Director of

          3  Community and Government Affairs for the Landmarks

          4  Preservation Commission.

          5                 I am here today to testify on the

          6  Commission's designation of the Noho East Historic

          7  District, the LP Hollander and Company building, the

          8  Williamsburg Houses, Erasmus Hall High School, and

          9  the Newtown High School.

         10                 First I'm just going to give you a

         11  brief summary of our public hearing results.

         12                 On March 4th, 2003, the Landmarks

         13  Preservation Commission held a public hearing on the

         14  proposed designation of the Noho East Historic

         15  District. Twelve witnesses spoke in favor of

         16  designation as proposed, including City Council

         17  Member Alan Gerson, representatives of State

         18  Assembly Member Deborah Glick, State Senator Martin

         19  Connor, Manhattan Community Board 2, the Noho New

         20  York Business Improvement District, the Noho

         21  Neighborhood Association, the New York Landmarks

         22  Conservancy, the Church of Our Lady of Loretto,

         23  Friends of Noho Architecture and the Greenwich

         24  Village Society for its historic preservations.

         25                 Many of these speakers expressed
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          2  interest in expanding the district designations in

          3  the Noho area. Five owners opposed inclusion in the

          4  district.

          5                 The Commission also received numerous

          6  letters in support of the proposed designation,

          7  including correspondence from State Senator Tom

          8  Duane, the Historic Districts Council and the

          9  Municipal Arts Society. On June 24th, 2003, the

         10  Commission voted to designate the Noho East Historic

         11  District.

         12                 This is for the LP Hollander and

         13  Company Building. On October 8th, 2002, the

         14  Landmarks Preservation Commission held a public

         15  hearing on the proposed designation of the LP

         16  Hollander and Company Building.

         17                 Two speakers, including a

         18  representative of Assembly Member Richard Gottfried,

         19  and a representative of the Historic Districts

         20  Council spoke in favor of designation.

         21                 The owner and his legal

         22  representative took no position on designation and

         23  there were no speakers in opposition.

         24                 The Commission received a letter from

         25  Community Board 5 in support of designations. The
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          2  hearing was continued on January 14th, 2003, at

          3  which time a letter of support from the owner of the

          4  building was read into the record.

          5                 On June 17th, 2003, the Commission

          6  voted to designate the LP Hollander and Company

          7  Building a New York City landmark.

          8                 This is for the Williamsburg Houses.

          9  On June 17th, 2003, the Landmarks Preservation

         10  Commission held a public hearing on the proposed

         11  designation of the Williamsburg Houses in Brooklyn.

         12  Four people spoke in favor of designations,

         13  including representatives of the New York City

         14  Housing Authority, the Municipal Arts Society, the

         15  New York Landmarks Conservancy and the Historic

         16  Districts Council.

         17                 Letters of support were also received

         18  from State Assemblyman Vito Lopez and New York

         19  Tristate DOCOMOMO. The Commission previously held

         20  public hearings on the Williamsburg Houses on August

         21  11th, 1981, and November 10th, 1981. On June 24th,

         22  2003, the Commission voted to designate the

         23  Williamsburg Houses a New York City landmark.

         24                 This is for Erasmus Hall High School

         25  in Brooklyn. On February 4th, 2003, the Landmarks
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          2  Preservation Commission held a public hearing on the

          3  proposed designation of Erasmus Hall High School.

          4  Three people spoke in favor of designation,

          5  including representatives of the Department of

          6  Education, the New York Landmarks Conservancy and

          7  the Historic Districts Council. There were no

          8  speakers opposed to designation.

          9                 The building had been the subject of

         10  previous public hearings on September 11th, 1984 and

         11  on July 10th, 1990. On June 24th, 2003, the

         12  Commission voted to designate Erasmus Hall High

         13  School a New York City Landmark.

         14                 And finally, for Newtown High School

         15  in Queens. On February 4th, 2003, the Landmarks

         16  Preservation Commission held a public hearing on the

         17  proposed designation of Newtown High School. Three

         18  people spoke in favor of designation, including

         19  representatives of the Department of Education, New

         20  York Landmarks Conservancy, and the Historic

         21  Districts Council. There was no testimony in

         22  opposition to designations.

         23                 The Commission held previous public

         24  hearings on the proposed designation on November

         25  18th, 1980 and July 10th, 1990. On June 24th, 2003,
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          2  the Commission voted to designate Newtown High

          3  School a New York City landmark.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: That's it. See?

          5  Do any of my colleagues have any questions about

          6  those five items?

          7                 Please, Council Member Oliver

          8  Koppell. I just want to introduce my colleagues. We

          9  have a guest. We have two guests, Councilwoman Maria

         10  Baez, who is here with us, who doesn't have to stay,

         11  I just wanted to make sure that I acknowledged you.

         12                 Councilman Alan Gerson, and our

         13  Majority Whip, Councilman Leroy Comrie, Councilman

         14  Charles Barron, and our Deputy Majority Leader Bill

         15  Perkins.

         16                 Question?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Just really

         18  arising primarily out of curiosity, why is it that

         19  Erasmus High School has been the subject of hearings

         20  going back to 1980 but nothing was done until now?

         21                 MS. JACKIER: At that time the

         22  Department of Education had, or the Board of

         23  Education had asked us to not designate, they were

         24  doing some work on the building. But we were still

         25  very interested in it and so we had brought it back.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Now, once

          3  it's now a landmark, is that merely to preserve the

          4  exterior, or does it also involve the interior?

          5                 MS. JACKIER: For this it's the

          6  exterior of the building.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Just the

          8  exterior.

          9                 MS. JACKIER: Yes.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: And if they

         11  wanted to make alteration, it would require

         12  permission of the Landmarks Commission.

         13                 MS. JACKIER: Right. They would

         14  require a permit from the Commission.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Okay, no,

         16  that's it.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Do my colleagues

         18  have any other questions?

         19                 Yes, Councilman Leroy Comrie.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: The exterior

         21  also applies to Newtown High School as well?

         22                 MS. JACKIER: Yes. Yes.

         23                 There is a distinction between an

         24  exterior designation and an interior designation.

         25  These are exterior designations.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. You

          3  indicate that somewhere in the final presentation

          4  that will be made? Because it's not indicated what

          5  the designation is at the moment, from what I can

          6  read.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Can I just

          8  interrupt for a minute? As a general rule, the

          9  landmarks are only the exterior. As a general rule.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Just out of

         11  curiosity. And the Williamsburg Houses, is that

         12  exterior also?

         13                 MS. JACKIER: Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. All

         15  right. Thank you. I was just curious. That has also

         16  been pending since 1981, can you give us an idea on

         17  what was the delay on that?

         18                 MS. JACKIER: I know that also they

         19  had asked the Landmarks Commission to hold off on

         20  designation while they did work on their building.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Was that work

         22  involving exterior, or?

         23                 MS. JACKIER: It did involve exterior.

         24  They did it in conjunction with the Landmarks

         25  Commission.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.

          3                 MS. JACKIER: With the advice of the

          4  Landmarks Commission.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay, thank

          6  you.

          7                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you very

          9  much.

         10                 Any other questions?

         11                 Okay, thank you very much. Just to

         12  clarify, Tiziana Hardy, you didn't mark off which

         13  item you want to discuss.

         14                 MS. HARDY: Noho East.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Noho East? Okay,

         16  no problem.

         17                 So, I'd like to call Simeon Bankoff

         18  and Roger Lang to discuss the five items that we're

         19  talking about, and then we will have Tiziana Hardy

         20  come up.

         21                 I would appreciate, since our two

         22  experts are here I would appreciate, and we're

         23  honored always having you, but if you're going to

         24  discuss the five items, you can decide who's going

         25  to talk about which ones, but I just don't want to
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          2  repeat the same things, if it's okay with you.

          3                 MR. BANKOFF: We will understand. This

          4  is a very packed agenda.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you.

          6                 MR. BANKOFF: I'd like to say hello to

          7  all the Council Members and welcome you back from

          8  summer. It's been a couple of months, it's great to

          9  see you all.

         10                 My name is Simeon Bankoff, Executive

         11  Director of the Historic Districts Council. While we

         12  are thrilled with these designations, mostly because

         13  they are in the outer boroughs, which is always a

         14  very positive thing, I'd like to just speak very

         15  briefly about the Williamsburg Houses, which are

         16  incredibly important for their social as well as

         17  architectural importance, and it's wonderful to see

         18  the City of New York recognizing this public housing

         19  and recognizing the importance of this public

         20  housing, both in its social planning and in its

         21  architectural distinction.

         22                 And I'd also just like to talk

         23  briefly about the Noho East Historic District.

         24                 Just to go on the record, HDC is in

         25  favor of all of these designations. The Noho East
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          2  designation, we would prefer to think of it as Noho

          3  part 2.1. There were many public promises made that

          4  the entirety of Noho, including the vast area that

          5  is north of Bleecker Street, and encompasses Great

          6  Jones, Bond Street, west -- East 4th, excuse me, all

          7  the way up to Cooper Square, was originally

          8  discussed back in 1998 and 1999 as being part of

          9  Noho 2, and we greatly look forward to the rest of

         10  that being designated.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 MR. LANG: Good morning, Mr. Chairman,

         13  and Council Members. My name is Roger Lang. I am

         14  here speaking on behalf of the New York Landmarks

         15  Conservancy.

         16                 We want to second HDC's call to have

         17  you ratify these four fine buildings in one historic

         18  district. Each is certainly deserving of

         19  designations and we urge you to ratify all five.

         20                 A couple of comments about the

         21  designations. First about Noho East. The Noho East

         22  historic district partially fulfills a promise made

         23  five years ago by former Landmarks Commission Chair

         24  Jennifer Raab to Mr. Gerson's predecessor, former

         25  City Council Member Kathryn Freed.
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          2                 We think it's especially fitting that

          3  you embrace and ratify this designation, which has

          4  been a long time coming.

          5                 With regard to the other

          6  designations, take note that three of them are

          7  public buildings. We think it is of the utmost

          8  importance that the City be willing to apply to

          9  itself the regulatory apparatus which it applies to

         10  others, and it is a great tribute to the Board of

         11  Education and to the Housing Authority that they

         12  have supported these designations, and we urge you

         13  to ratify them.

         14                 The Williamsburg Houses, which

         15  Council Member Comrie asked about were renovated in

         16  recent years, and they have been done to the utmost

         17  degree of fidelity to the art deco and modern

         18  character of that seminal public housing project.

         19  They won an award from the Landmarks Conservancy for

         20  restoration and it's just a delight to have them in

         21  the Landmarks inventory.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: You're welcome.

         24                 Do any of my colleagues have any

         25  questions?
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 Tiziana Hardy. Just push the button.

          4  There's a little button there.

          5                 MS. HARDY: Oh, okay. I apologize for

          6  my bad handwriting to begin with. And I'm talking on

          7  behalf of Friends of Noho Architecture, to thank the

          8  Landmarks Commission and the City Council for the

          9  designation of Noho East. I will spare you the

         10  description of Noho East, but we urge the Landlord

         11  Commission to complete the designation by adding

         12  East 4th, Jones and Bond Streets from Lafayette to

         13  the Bowery to the existing and proposed new

         14  district.

         15                 This is the rest of Noho, these

         16  streets with the occasional gaps of vacant lots are

         17  worthy of designation for the beautiful small scale

         18  structures that fit so well with the fabric of the

         19  neighborhoods.

         20                 The protection of landmark

         21  designations is even more essential now that the

         22  City Planning Commission is considering the

         23  notification of the existing N15A and N15B zoning

         24  regulation. Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you very
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          2  much for coming. Do any of my colleagues have any

          3  questions?

          4                 No questions. I just want to mention

          5  how much we appreciate the fact when an individuals

          6  come and take of their time to let us know how you

          7  feel on these issues, so we appreciate that very

          8  much.

          9                 Councilman Alan Gerson, whose

         10  district this is.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you, Mr.

         12  Chair. I don't have a question, but I do have a

         13  brief comment. I just, first of all, must know, Mr.

         14  Chair, that Ms. Tiziana Hardy, with whom you're now

         15  very well acquainted, truly is one of the jewels of

         16  our City. Her voice provides one of the important

         17  clarion calls responsible for preservation of our

         18  historic and architectural crown jewels that make

         19  our City in its diversity, which preserve an

         20  important part of our City's diversity making, you

         21  know, adding to the wealth of greatness and

         22  enjoyment which all New Yorkers have.

         23                 So, I want to acknowledge the

         24  outstanding work of Ms. Hardy, day in and day out in

         25  the cause of preservation, as well as many other
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          2  important civic causes.

          3                 But Mr. Chair, just briefly, I

          4  support fully, as the record indicates, the

          5  landmarking of Noho East. The landmarking of the

          6  entire Noho District remains one of the landmarking

          7  imperatives we face for the City and it is, I'm

          8  quite confident, our landmarking destiny. It will

          9  happen. Why it must happen in this agonizingly slow

         10  piece by piece manner is an interesting question for

         11  landmarking history, but I just want to thank you,

         12  Mr. Chair, for your support, on behalf of my

         13  community for your support and your leadership in

         14  this, and just remind all present that we know we

         15  have an unfinished job for all the reasons which I

         16  do not need to reiterate, which you see before you

         17  in the report.

         18                 We must continue immediately and

         19  forthwith with the landmarking of the entire Noho

         20  District. I will point out there are some Soho and

         21  Noho Land Use zoning issues that will be coming

         22  before this Committee, because -- not this

         23  Subcommittee but the Land Use Committee, because of

         24  the history of the linkage between the zoning and

         25  the landmarking in Noho and Soho, which is well
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          2  established on the record.

          3                 This would present an important

          4  opportunity to seize to complete the landmarking of

          5  Noho in the immediate future.

          6                 So, I know we'll be able to work

          7  together on that, and I thank you for that, Mr.

          8  Chair.

          9                 I support this with the importance

         10  rejoined that we must complete the job as soon as

         11  possible.

         12                 Thank you very much.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you.

         14                 So, do any of my colleagues have any

         15  questions?

         16                 Again, I want to thank Councilman

         17  Gerson for coming down, it's very, very important.

         18  Even though we discuss it with Council members in

         19  whose districts, but it certainly shows how

         20  important the issue is when you come down in person.

         21  Even though you don't life far from here, we still

         22  appreciate it very much, because we know you have a

         23  very busy schedule. Thank you.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: We're going to
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          2  take a vote on the first five items that we've

          3  mentioned.

          4                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Felder.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Yes.

          6                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Perkins.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Aye on all.

          8                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

          9  Barron.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Aye on all.

         11                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         12  Comrie.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Aye on all.

         14                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         15  Koppell.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Aye on all.

         17                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: The vote stands

         18  at five in the affirmative, none in the negative and

         19  no abstentions, and are referred to the full Land

         20  Use Committee.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: My colleagues,

         22  thank you very much.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you.

         24                 I want to acknowledge the presence of

         25  our esteemed colleague, Councilman Robert Jackson,
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          2  who is here with us at this time.

          3                 Good morning, and thank you for being

          4  here.

          5                 Okay, in terms of the sixth item,

          6  which we're going to deal with now.

          7                 LU 508. Manhattan Community Board 9.

          8  20045002 HKM. Designation, List Number 347, LP-2127,

          9  by the Landmarks Preservation Commission pursuant to

         10  Section 3020 of the New York City Charter of the

         11  Cathedral Church of the St. John the Divine, located

         12  1047 Amsterdam Avenue, 1061 Amsterdam Avenue, also

         13  known as 1021 Amsterdam Avenue, 1061 Amsterdam

         14  Avenue, 419 West 110th Street, Block 1865, p/o lot

         15  1.

         16                 Before we begin, I want to clarify

         17  some of the sheets that were handed in, just to make

         18  sure who is here to testify.

         19                 I see there is Walter South. Can you

         20  raise your hand, please. He is here on his own.

         21  Right? On your own? You're opposed to it.

         22                 Joyce Matz, is she here? You're here

         23  on your own, right?

         24                 When I say on your own, all I want to

         25  know is whether you're representing some
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          2  neighborhood organization. And we're delighted that

          3  you're all here.

          4                 Joyce Matz, Ann Armisteed. Did I

          5  pronounce that right? Michael Henry Adams. Hewey

          6  Nornel. How is your book doing? Good. Thomas

          7  Kappner.

          8                 Okay, is there anyone else in this

          9  room here that is here to testify in favor or

         10  opposition?

         11                 MR. DeMOTT: Yes, I signed up.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: What's your name?

         13                 MR. DeMOTT: Tom DeMott, D-e M-o-t-t.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Hold on a minute.

         15  Yes, it says here that you represent --

         16                 MR. DeMOTT: West Harlem Coalition?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Right. So, you're

         18  representing some kind of neighborhood organization.

         19  How many members does that organization have?

         20                 (speaking from the audience, not

         21  using microphone.)

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Excellent. So the

         23  issue is, I want to know if there is any other

         24  individuals that I haven't mentioned. Individuals.

         25  Are there any other individuals who do not represent
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          2  any organizations that are here to testify either in

          3  favor or in opposition?

          4                 Okay, we'll do it the Felder style.

          5  We're going to have panels, and I'd like to ask

          6  Michael Henry Adams to come up, Ann Armisteed to

          7  come up, Joyce Matz to come up, and Walter South to

          8  come up. And if we need any additional chairs, we're

          9  going to ask the Sergeant-At-Arms to help them out.

         10                 I assume that all of you are in

         11  opposition. That's what you checked off, most of

         12  you, am I right? Yes? You are all testifying in

         13  opposition? Okay. So, this is the guidelines of how

         14  we're going to do this, so that the colleagues that

         15  are here, as well as everybody else, gets a clear

         16  understanding as to why you're in favor or opposed

         17  to the designation without repeating the same things

         18  twice or three times, and I know that that may be

         19  difficult, but the purpose of the hearing is to make

         20  sure that everyone understands clearly why you're

         21  opposed or in favor of the project, not necessarily

         22  giving everybody a chance to say the same things

         23  over and over again. I apologize for that.

         24                 So, among you, there are four of you,

         25  you can decide among yourselves who would like to
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          2  speak first, and then I'm asking you as a courtesy

          3  to speak and say whatever you want to say, as long

          4  as it's not repeating the same thing again and

          5  again, because we want to make sure that everything

          6  is heard without being heard over and over again.

          7                 Do any of you have a preference as to

          8  who will go first? If not I'll just pick one out of

          9  the hat.

         10                 Okay, Walter South. How do you like

         11  how I did that one?

         12                 MR. SOUTH: John, Chapter 2, verse 13:

         13  "Jesus went up to Jerusalem and found in the temple

         14  those that sold oxen and sheep and doves, and the

         15  changers of money sitting. And when he made a score

         16  to small cords, he drove them all out of the temple,

         17  and the sheep and the oxen and poured out the

         18  changer's money and overthrew their tables. And he

         19  said unto them that sold doves take these things

         20  hence, make not my Father's House a house of

         21  merchandise, and his disciples remembered that it

         22  was written. The zeal of Thine house has eaten me

         23  up."

         24                 I think this is an appropriate

         25  quotation for the issue that is before us. It's very
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          2  interesting how things changed in over 2,000 years.

          3  The tenants are now the landlords, and instead of

          4  coming to City Hall screaming, they come pleaing for

          5  the end of rent controls.

          6                 Has 2,000 years improved their moral

          7  Compas? I'll leave that judgment up to you. But I

          8  will tell you a short story about two elderly Quaker

          9  ladies who met.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Excuse me, Mr.

         11  South?

         12                 MR. SOUTH: Yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: There's a

         14  two-minute limit on the testimony as well, and I

         15  don't mind listening to whatever you have to say,

         16  but I assume that you came to discuss the issue of

         17  the landmarked designation?

         18                 MR. SOUTH: Definitely.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: So, since we'd

         20  like to hear whatever you have to say about the

         21  designation, you should decide how you want to use

         22  that two minutes regarding the designation of the

         23  landmark.

         24                 MR. SOUTH: The question before us is

         25  quite simple: The use of land anywhere is a moral
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          2  issue. If the proposal that came before us here was

          3  a proposal to be deforest 100,000 of Amazon

          4  rainforest, I think that the very people coming here

          5  to plea for the cause of the Cathedral would be

          6  pleading for the cause of the bioatmosphere.

          7                 Is the land of our City any less

          8  valuable than the rainforest and the Amazon jungles?

          9  I think not.

         10                 This was a building that was built to

         11  glorify the message. This was a building that was

         12  meant to stand alone. This was a building that was

         13  not meant to be hid among many buildings, it was not

         14  a mystery, it was an announcement.

         15                 This was a building which was given

         16  in stewardship to the cathedral, a stewardship to be

         17  handed down and cherished in its original fee simple

         18  form, and to violate this responsibility to build a

         19  proposed 19 story building on the corner of 110th

         20  Street and Amsterdam by polchek (phonetic) is in

         21  reality as much as anything a moral question for

         22  both us and the church. Is everything in the City

         23  for sale? It seems to me that there can be some

         24  additional Bible classes on 112th Street.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Is there anyone
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          2  else on the panel that has anything to add to that?

          3                 Please raise your hand. Okay, let me

          4  pull one out of the hat.

          5                 Joyce Matz.

          6                 MS. MATZ: Yes. Are you allowing me to

          7  speak now?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Yes.

          9                 Not only are we allowing you, we want

         10  you to speak.

         11                 MS. MATZ: Because I'm speaking for

         12  myself, it's important for you to know that --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Can you please

         14  run the clock, Sergeant-At-Arms?

         15                 MS. MATZ: When St. Bartholomew's was

         16  about to be dismembered, many of us fought to save

         17  the entire site.

         18                 I was one of those who fought for ten

         19  years to protect all parts of the St. Bartholomew

         20  site. Now we have a very similar issue coming up. No

         21  one can say that St. John the Divine is not a

         22  landmark, but what is very important is to preserve

         23  the entire site.

         24                 There has to be rules and regulations

         25  so that there are no towers built around the church.
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          2  This is the greatest gothic, largest gothic

          3  cathedral in the world. People come from all over

          4  the world to see it, to put their arms around the

          5  columns that are enormous. I've worked up there for

          6  many years, and I think it's important for you to

          7  understand that we were able to save all of St.

          8  Barts, the community house, the terrace, the

          9  gardens, every part of it. That's not going to

         10  happen here unless the entire site is designated.

         11  You're going to have towers going up, you can have

         12  buildings going up, there's not going to be any

         13  control over what happens on that site, unless you

         14  designate the entire St. John the Divine site.

         15  History designates it, we should too.

         16                 And I hope you'll read my rather

         17  lengthy notes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I can't speak for

         19  my colleagues, of course I'm sure that they will. I

         20  will try to do so.

         21                 I just want to clarify to everyone

         22  who is here, that we, and the Landmarks Committee do

         23  not have the power to expand what is being proposed.

         24  We have the power to either designate it, or turn it

         25  down.
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          2                 MS. MATZ: I understand that.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Yes.

          4                 MS. MATZ: That's why I'm suggesting

          5  they can turn it down until the entire site can be

          6  designated.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Or we can make it

          8  smaller. We don't have the power to make it larger,

          9  so that you understand that.

         10                 Anybody else on the panel that has

         11  anything to add? Is that a yes? Okay, since Mr.

         12  Perkins, and Michael Adams, and it's in alphabetical

         13  order, is that all right?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Yes.

         15                 MR. ADAMS: Going along with Mr.

         16  South's testimony, I'll go to the old Testament.

         17                 King Solomon, he presented --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I need a lot more

         19  religion than I have, but I am not prepared to spend

         20  the time today, and please, it's no offense to you,

         21  I want to talk about specifics about the landmark

         22  and the landmark status, not about anything else.

         23                 MR. ADAMS: Well, Mr. Felder, I

         24  believe that's what I'm doing.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Okay. Then I
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          2  apologize.

          3                 MR. ADAMS: King Solomon is presented

          4  with this choice, a child, two people claiming to be

          5  the mother. There is nobody here who doesn't want

          6  the Cathedral Church of St. John the Divine to be

          7  protected by landmarking, but rather than have

          8  disfiguring buildings built all around it, we say

          9  turn that landmark designation away until the

         10  Cathedral and the Commission can come back and do

         11  the right thing.

         12                 Imagine what the Landmarks

         13  Commission, the City agency is doing. They're saying

         14  to you, these people are such good people, and we

         15  believe so much in their good faith, that we can cut

         16  out a part of the area and allow them to regulate

         17  themselves, confident that they won't do anything

         18  counter to the interest of a landmarked resource.

         19                 And, so, the natural question you ask

         20  yourself about this, well, if that's true, why not

         21  designate everything and have the regulation which

         22  won't be any impediment on them?

         23                 So, we urge you, all of us here, turn

         24  down this nefarious, horrible designation. It will

         25  be a blot on the good work of this Committee and its
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          2  oversight role, if they were to approve so

          3  diabolical a plan as the one put forward to you by

          4  Columbia University and the Cathedral Church of St.

          5  John the Divine.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: And I want to

          8  apologize. The minute I heard King Solomon I figured

          9  I was in trouble. I'm sorry.

         10                 Yes, Ann Armisteed, do you have

         11  anything to add?

         12                 MS. ARMISTEED: Yes. I am here to

         13  implore each of you to represent both the meek and

         14  the mighty.

         15                 It seems to me that on a roll of

         16  paper towels, in our every deliberation we must

         17  consider the impact of our decisions on the next

         18  seven generations. From the great law of the Iraq

         19  Confederacy (sic).  I think there is more

         20  sensibility on a roll of paper towels than has come

         21  out of the Landmarks Commission and I urge you to

         22  use the powers vested in you to protect the

         23  immediate community, the City of New York and the

         24  people of the world.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Okay, thank you

          3  very much. I appreciate your comments.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Mr. Chairman,

          5  I note that prior to the consideration of the other

          6  two matters, of course we heard from the

          7  representative of the Landmarks Commission.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I was going to

          9  call her up now.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Oh, good.

         11  Your mind and my mind is on the same path.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I have to admit

         13  that I wasn't going to do it, but I wanted to take

         14  the credit for it.

         15                 I'd like the Landmarks Preservation

         16  Commission to come up and testify, please.

         17                 MS. JACKIER: Good morning, again,

         18  Council Members. My name is Diane Jackier, from the

         19  Landmarks Preservation Commission.

         20                 I am here today to testify on the

         21  Commission's Designation of the Cathedral Church of

         22  St. John the Divine in Manhattan as a New York City

         23  landmark.

         24                 On November 12th, 2002, the Landmarks

         25  Commission held a public hearing on the proposed
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          2  designation of the Cathedral Church of St. John the

          3  Divine and the close. Twenty-one witnesses spoke in

          4  support of designating the cathedral, including the

          5  Dean of the Cathedral, Manhattan Borough President

          6  C. Virginia Field, State Assemblyman-elect Daniel

          7  O'Donnell, Manhattan Community Board 9, the

          8  Morningside Heights Historic District Committee, the

          9  Morningside Heights Neighborhood Association,

         10  Landmark West, Friends of the Upper East Side

         11  Historic Districts, Morningside Heights Residents'

         12  Association, the Historic Districts Council, the

         13  Society for the Architecture of the City, and the

         14  West 112th Street Block Association. Many of these

         15  witnesses testified in favor of designating the

         16  entire Cathedral site, including all the buildings

         17  on the Cathedral close.

         18                 The public hearing was continued on

         19  November 26, 2002. Ten witnesses spoke in favor of

         20  designating the cathedral, including State

         21  Assemblyman Edward C. Sullivan and representatives

         22  of State Senator Eric Schneiderman and the Municipal

         23  Arts Society. Many of these witnesses testified in

         24  favor of designating the entire Cathedral site.

         25                 The hearing was continued again on
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          2  September 10th, 2002. Two representatives of the

          3  owner testified in favor of the designation and the

          4  Victorian Society of America testified in favor of

          5  designating the entire Cathedral site.

          6                 The Commission also received

          7  correspondence regarding the proposed designation.

          8  Former Mayor David N. Dinkins and State Comptroller

          9  H. Cal McCall asked the Landmarks Commission to

         10  designate only the Cathedral and not the surrounding

         11  close, and the Women's City Club of New York

         12  submitted a letter asking the Commission to

         13  designate the entire site.

         14                 The Cathedral was the subject of

         15  earlier public hearings on July 12th, 1966,

         16  September 13th, 1966, and October 11th, 1966. A

         17  subsequent public hearing on December 11th, 1979,

         18  including the Cathedral and the close -- included

         19  the Cathedral and the close.

         20                 On June 17th, 2003, the Commission

         21  voted to designate the Cathedral Church of St. John

         22  the Divine a New York City landmark.

         23                 One of the great religious structures

         24  of the world, the Cathedral Church of St. John the

         25  Divine, located at Amsterdam Avenue and West 112th
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          2  Street -- okay -- the Commission urges you to affirm

          3  the designation.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I'm sorry, do any

          5  of my colleagues --

          6                 MS. JACKIER: I still have two more

          7  paragraphs, do you want me to finish, or?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: No. Unless

          9  there's something specific that you want to add.

         10                 I'm asking everybody to do the same

         11  thing. This is called equal discrimination against

         12  all those that are testifying. What I'm trying to do

         13  is to sift out, you know, what the elements, other

         14  than that which we have, the material which we've

         15  been given, things that are of more interest, or

         16  something that maybe the members would not notice

         17  otherwise.

         18                 MS. JACKIER: The Cathedral is the

         19  largest church in the United States and the largest

         20  Cathedral in the world.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Council Member

         22  Koppell.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: It's clear,

         24  Mr. Chair, it seems to me, that the controversy over

         25  whether just the cathedral should be designated,
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          2  which is what is before us, or the entire site, and

          3  there seems to be some concern that if the site

          4  isn't designated it could be dispoiled in one way or

          5  another.

          6                 Can you give us, please, the

          7  rationale for not designating entire sites, it seems

          8  to be based on what you said and what the earlier

          9  witness said, a lot of sentiment in favor of

         10  designating the whole site; why is the Landmark

         11  Commission opposed to that, or at least not in favor

         12  of it at this time? Can you explain that?

         13                 MS. JACKIER: It's not uncommon when

         14  dealing with a landmark on a large parcel of land

         15  for the Commission to just designate the land

         16  underneath the actual building and not the entire

         17  site surrounding the building.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: It's not

         19  what?

         20                 MS. JACKIER: Not uncommon. It's

         21  something that we do.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: But given the

         23  fact that many people, both here and before today,

         24  testified in favor of designating the whole site,

         25  why didn't the Commission do that?
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          2                 MS. WHISK: Rhonda Whisk, the

          3  Executive Director.

          4                 The entire site consists of the

          5  Cathedral, the various historic buildings on the

          6  site, known as the close, and the two parcels that

          7  people are concerned about. What the Commission did

          8  was to designate the Cathedral itself to leave the

          9  rest of the historic building, what we call

         10  calendared, so they would be under our jurisdiction

         11  so that should any changes be made they would have

         12  to come back to the Commission, and at the same time

         13  they -- and they may come back for future

         14  consideration at a later date, you know, the dean of

         15  the school and so on and so forth, all the historic

         16  buildings.

         17                 The two sites at 110th and 113th

         18  Street, which are not historic, I mean they're not

         19  historic in terms of buildings, I'm sure they're

         20  historic geologically, there are no buildings on

         21  them, there have never been buildings on them. These

         22  two sites were the sites that were decalendared at

         23  the same time. So there's nothing of a historic

         24  structural nature that is not under the jurisdiction

         25  of the Landmarks Commission at this time.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Is it your

          3  understanding that those people who seem to be very

          4  disturbed about this are talking about those two

          5  sites?

          6                 MS. WHISK: Yes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Not the other

          8  buildings?

          9                 MS. WHISK: Actually, I don't -- this

         10  is what the Commission did.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Okay.

         12                 But now, those two sites, the part

         13  that's not on the calendar anymore that you referred

         14  to, who owns those?

         15                 MS. WHISK: The Cathedral owns the

         16  entire lot at this time.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: And when the

         18  Landmark Commission designates something as a

         19  landmark, I know your colleague there said that it's

         20  not uncommon not to designate the whole land, but

         21  are there instances where the whole site has been

         22  designated a landmark, thereby restricting

         23  development of other parts of the site?

         24                 MS. WHISK: I would say, yes, but I

         25  have a list of all of the times that we have done
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          2  this, that we have done this either with the plant

          3  -- Scrimsor buildings (phonetic) in St. Luke's

          4  Hospital, St. George's Church in Queens, we did not

          5  designate, they also have a very large site. We left

          6  out, not only did we leave out parking lots, but we

          7  left out some buildings. The Wyckoff House in

          8  Brooklyn, which was one of our earliest

          9  designations, we only designated part of the sites,

         10  Riverside Church, we designated the original church

         11  structure, and we left the Martin Luther King wing

         12  calendared and we left a part of it unprotected.

         13  There is a new, a 1959 garage building in Brooklyn,

         14  in Bayridge, and these are all, except for the

         15  Wyckoff House, fairly recent designations.

         16                 In Bayridge we designated the Bennett

         17  Fell house and we decalendared an old barn building

         18  that the neighborhood was actually concerned about,

         19  but we decalendared that.

         20                 At Fordham University, we designated

         21  part of the site. 1 Wall Street, we did not

         22  designate the entire building, we left --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I gather from

         24  what you're saying, and what you've said, is that

         25  there are many places that you didn't.
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          2                 MS. WHISK: Yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: But are there

          4  places where you did designate the whole site?

          5  That's really my --

          6                 MS. WHISK: There may be, and --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Let me ask

          8  you this: If it was in fact the wish of this

          9  Committee to designate the whole site, the first

         10  question I would ask, Mr. Chair, I think maybe you'd

         11  like to hear the answer of this question possibly.

         12                 If it was the wish of this Committee

         13  to designate the whole site, including those two

         14  people that you mentioned, apparently you don't have

         15  anything major on them, if it was the wish of this

         16  Committee to have that as a result, would that be

         17  advanced if we turned down the designation of the

         18  Cathedral itself at this time and sent it back to

         19  the Landmark Commission with that recommendation?

         20                 MS. WHISK: We could do that. That

         21  would have no effect on enlarging the site. What it

         22  would have an effect on would then be that the

         23  historic cathedral would not be under the

         24  jurisdiction of the Landmarks Commission, and the

         25  only part of the site that would be under the
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          2  jurisdiction of the Landmarks Commission are the

          3  small, the school, the deanery and so on and so

          4  forth, so that both the cathedral structure and

          5  those other two parcels will be, you know, able to

          6  be used in any way that the Cathedral wishes to use

          7  them.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: What is the

          9  position of the Cathedral on those two sites.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: We're going to

         11  hear from them.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Oh, we're

         13  going to hear from them? All right.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Could you just

         15  clarify the question that Council Member Koppell

         16  mentioned? In other words, in theory, if we vote no

         17  on this, what happens to the two sites to the

         18  cathedral square that's not landmarked? What happens

         19  to the two sites, the space, where there is nothing

         20  built on it; are you saying that the Church can do

         21  whatever they want with it?

         22                 MS. WHISK: Yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: By right of law,

         24  okay.

         25                 MS. WHISK: And the church itself, the
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          2  church itself would not be under the jurisdiction.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Well, I would

          4  hope that the church is not going to do anything to

          5  the building itself.

          6                 The question is the other parcels, if

          7  we do nothing, they can do whatever they want with

          8  those parcels.

          9                 MS. WHISK: They're decalendared.

         10  Right now, and just to sort of add on -- I don't

         11  have any formal testimony, I just came to answer

         12  questions, we have done this, you know, we have left

         13  parcel sites out in quite a few designations, but

         14  the Commission grappled with this. After all, this

         15  is something the Commission has been looking at

         16  since 1966. The Commission has been trying to

         17  designate this building since the first year of its

         18  establishment. So, they are very concerned about

         19  what could be built near the Cathedral.

         20                 So, as part of the calendaring, the

         21  Cathedral is not allowed to do whatever it wants to

         22  do on those two sites. There will be a committee set

         23  up, there is a restrictive declaration that the

         24  Cathedral sign that goes with the property in

         25  perpetuity that will restrict future development to
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          2  a certain envelope. It has not been designed yet but

          3  it's restricted in the envelope, it's set back

          4  further than the steps on Amsterdam Avenue and it's

          5  set back further than the Aps on Morningside, so

          6  that there is still a view of the Cathedral as a

          7  freestanding building when you're uptown and you're

          8  walking down, you know, when you're walkin downtown.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I just want to

         10  get this thing straight, because I think that it may

         11  help with some of the other questions.

         12                 I want to discuss bargaining. I don't

         13  want to discuss religion again. I don't want to

         14  discuss the Cathedral, I want to discuss landmarks,

         15  the issue with the landmarks. I think that I would

         16  like to know, and many of my colleagues want to

         17  know, we turn this thing down in theory, then they

         18  can start the Landmarks process again, somebody

         19  comes forward -- I'm asking you. I'm not asking

         20  anybody, except for the witness. In theory they

         21  could come back and say we want to start the

         22  landmarks process again, and we'd like it to include

         23  the Cathedral, as well as its parcels and everything

         24  else; is that true or not?

         25                 MS. WHISK: That is true in theory.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: So, Mr. Adams,

          3  for example, made the argument earlier and said,

          4  turn it down, either we get the whole thing right or

          5  we don't want anything at all. In theory, if it's

          6  turned down at this point, there's an opportunity to

          7  bring it back and for it to be done, as he says,

          8  done entirely in its entirety; is that true or not?

          9                 MS. WHISK: In theory it's true.

         10  However, with the decalendar sites, the Church could

         11  file applications at the Buildings Department before

         12  anything happens.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: So that means if

         14  nothing is done now, if nothing is done now, they

         15  can do, the Churches can build, at this time the

         16  Church can build on the parcels; is that true or

         17  not? Without any problems?

         18                 MS. WHISK: It's decalendared but

         19  there's a restrictive declaration, and there is

         20  going to be a committee set up with various members,

         21  and the Cathedral will speak to that, a design

         22  committee, which will oversee the design of a new

         23  building.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: No, but that

         25  wasn't what I asked. What I want to know is that if
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          2  it's turned down, what I'd like to know is, is the

          3  Cathedral able under the law to do whatever it wants

          4  with those two parcels?

          5                 MS. WHISK: Yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Yes.

          7                 And so that it could do whatever it

          8  wants with the parcels, whether we prove it or

          9  whether we don't?

         10                 MS. WHISK: No.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: So explain that

         12  part. If we approve the landmarks, then what can't

         13  they do?

         14                 MS. WHISK: If you approve the

         15  landmark, they have restrictive depth, which

         16  restricts them to construction of a building -- I'm

         17  just talking about the north parcel, not about the

         18  one at 110th Street, that is set back from Amsterdam

         19  Avenue behind the steps, it's set back from

         20  Morningside behind the Aps. It takes up I think

         21  about, maybe 65 percent of the allowable zoning. So,

         22  it's a smaller than as of right building, and it

         23  will have to be approved by a Committee which I

         24  don't think has been selected but I think that

         25  they're representative.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I think my

          3  colleagues have some questions, and I think some of

          4  the questions I know that I have will have to be

          5  directed towards those that are representing the

          6  Cathedral and are in favor. I know some of mine. But

          7  if any of my colleagues have any other questions?

          8                 Councilman Barron, please.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Thank you very

         10  much, Mr. Chairman. And I do have another pressing

         11  matter I have to attend.

         12                 If there is a vote, if there is a

         13  vote taken today, I want to vote no on this item,

         14  and I do have to leave.

         15                 I've always been against incremental

         16  designations from the beginning of my stay on the

         17  Committee, and I think holistic designation is far

         18  better for this -- for both communities, not just

         19  the community on one side, but there's a community

         20  on the other side, and I think for both communities

         21  a holistic designation would be better.

         22                 But I wanted to ask you about, in

         23  your testimony it's confusing when you say, you list

         24  C. Virginia Fields, State Assembly-elect Daniel, and

         25  all these people, then you say some were for this,
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          2  some weren't; who is for what? Because it's hard to

          3  tell.

          4                 MS. JACKIER: Everybody was in favor

          5  of designating the whole Cathedral. In designating

          6  just the Cathedral.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Say that

          8  again.

          9                 MS. JACKIER: Everyone was in favor of

         10  designating the Cathedral, but the Dean of the

         11  Cathedral was requesting that the Commission just

         12  designate the Cathedral itself.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: So everybody

         14  here wanted the whole site?

         15                 MS. JACKIER: Yes. And then at the

         16  second hearing there were also -- C. Virginia Fields

         17  then requested that the Commission, you know, take

         18  her new testimony. She requested that the Commission

         19  side with the Cathedral and just designate the

         20  Cathedral itself, and decalendar the two portions.

         21  And we also received letters from -- I have it

         22  written down here, I can tell you.

         23                 The first hearing --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: This is very

         25  confusing testimony, and to write it like this, you
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          2  know --

          3                 MS. JACKIER: I apologize. I can tell

          4  you, at the first hearing there were two people in

          5  favor of the proposal as presented, 18 who wanted us

          6  to designate the whole site, one person who had no

          7  opinion.

          8                 At the second hearing there were

          9  three people in favor of the proposal as presented,

         10  and seven people who wanted us to designate the

         11  whole site.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: So the

         13  majority of people wanted you to designate the whole

         14  site?

         15                 MS. JACKIER: Then we also received

         16  letters from --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Wait. Wait.

         18  Wait. Wait. Slow down for a second, I'm going to get

         19  to Dinkins and all of that.

         20                 The majority of the people in those

         21  hearings wanted you to designate the whole site?

         22                 MS. JACKIER: Yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Right. See,

         24  that should be clear in this testimony and it's not.

         25  And you're very sharp, you've come to us many, many
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          2  times, so I don't understand how this testimony gets

          3  written like this so that we're confused, we don't

          4  know who is for. Just what you said should be in

          5  your testimony, that eight of the -- you're very

          6  clear, you're very sharp on every time you come

          7  before us, but this mumbo jumbo here makes us

          8  suspicious as to what's going on. So, I think you

          9  should continue to be as clear as you always have

         10  been. Once you get foggy, I get concerned. You know,

         11  we've got to be clear that the majority of the

         12  people in both hearings said they wanted the whole

         13  site designated. And that should be reflected.

         14                 Now, what were you going to say about

         15  David Dinkins.

         16                 MS. JACKIER: We also received letters

         17  from several members of the public. Former Mayor

         18  Dinkins, David Dinkins, and State Comptroller Carl

         19  McCall, asked the Landmarks Commission to designate

         20  just the Cathedral and to decalendar the two

         21  portions.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Right. They

         23  never came at the hearings, they just sent you

         24  letters.

         25                 MS. JACKIER: They sent letters.

                                                            53

          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Thank you. And

          3  excuse me.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: The Committee I

          5  think, certainly I think it would be clearer if you

          6  can just prepare the testimony again and maybe

          7  reflect whatever Councilman Barron just mentioned.

          8                 Councilman Perkins.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I just want

         10  to underscore my concerns about this testimony here

         11  because the first part of the testimony identifies

         12  people in support of designating the Cathedral, and

         13  it includes the Dean of the Cathedral, the Borough

         14  President so on and so forth, including the

         15  Morningside Heights Historic District Committee, and

         16  the impression is that all of these people supported

         17  designating the Cathedral when in fact that's not

         18  what you mean to say here.

         19                 MS. JACKIER: No, they did support

         20  designating the Cathedral.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: No, the

         22  Morningside Heights -- the impression is that all

         23  they wanted was the Cathedral, not the Cathedral and

         24  the close. Some wanted the Cathedral only, or were

         25  prepared to accept only the Cathedral, and some were
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          2  prepared to accept only the total site. And you've

          3  mixed them all up in the same paragraph and give the

          4  impression that there's this overwhelming community

          5  support for that which I know as the Councilman in

          6  that area there's overwhelming community opposition.

          7  And I don't understand why that is being done here

          8  like this.

          9                 MS. JACKIER: I apologize.

         10                 MS. WHISK: We apologize for the --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: You know, I

         12  don't accept the apology because you go on and you

         13  begin to then -- I don't know what you're trying to

         14  do in the sentence that begins with the public

         15  hearing was continued on November 26th, ten

         16  witnesses spoke in favor of designating the

         17  Cathedral, including the State Assemblyman Ed

         18  Sullivan -- was he interested in the Cathedral only?

         19                 MS. JACKIER: He was interested in the

         20  Cathedral and the whole site.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay, but you

         22  don't say that. You say he was in favor of

         23  designating the Cathedral, including State

         24  Assemblyman Ed Sullivan. Now, what he spoke in favor

         25  of was the whole thing.
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          2                 MS. JACKIER: He was in favor of the

          3  Cathedral and the whole site, yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: But you don't

          5  give him credit for that. You give him credit only

          6  for that which you want us to support here. It gives

          7  a false impression.

          8                 Let me ask you about Eric

          9  Schneiderman, was he in favor?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Hold on a minute.

         11  I'm using, what is this called? My gavel. I'm sorry

         12  for taking away your thunder.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: It's not

         14  thunder. I'm disturbed about this because of the

         15  fact that I have been attempting to intervene in a

         16  very up front and positive way and I want to be

         17  clear about what this testimony is saying.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Right. But at the

         19  same time, I think that Councilman Barron just went

         20  through --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Mr. Chairman,

         22  I don't want you to tell me I cannot ask my

         23  questions. I'm not going to accept that. I want to

         24  be clear for the record exactly what this testimony

         25  is saying, line by line, name by name. For the
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          2  record, I want to show that there's some very

          3  conscious disingenuous testimony being provided to

          4  us today. I want that to be clear, and I want it to

          5  come out of the mouth of the people that put it in

          6  front of us.

          7                 From the point of view of State

          8  Senator Eric Schneiderman --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: No, just one

         10  minute. I'm not done.

         11                 So, in order to satisfy Councilman

         12  Perkins' request, I would like you to right now go

         13  through the list of everyone that you listed on this

         14  thing and tell us --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Mr. Chairman,

         16  let me ask. I have been given the opportunity for

         17  questions, and now you're taking the opportunity

         18  from me, and rephrasing the question in a way that

         19  you find acceptable. I think I can do this as well.

         20  So, I'd appreciate the respect from you that I would

         21  give you. I don't want you to interfere with my

         22  questioning.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I know you don't.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Well, why are

         25  you then?
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          2                 You know I love you, why are you?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Well, now that

          4  you love me, let me think about it.

          5                 No, the reason I'm doing it is I'm

          6  trying to get to the bottom of this. I want to get

          7  to the bottom of this and I want to make sure that

          8  whatever it is that you are concerned about --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: But I can

         10  best express my concerns.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I have an idea.

         12  We're going to work out a compromise as King Solomon

         13  said. I want her to do what I just said, to go

         14  through each one of those people mentioned and I

         15  want the staff to record each one of the members to

         16  say very clearly whether they were in favor of the

         17  entire designation, or part of it, and then if you

         18  still have anything else that you want to say, we'll

         19  stay here as long as you want and answer any of the

         20  questions.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: The only

         22  problem is, Mr. Chairman, at certain points you're

         23  going to stop me and then do what you want to do and

         24  take away my privilege as a member of this Committee

         25  to ask my questions my way.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: How often has

          3  that happened?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Once is too

          5  much. Okay? Once is too much.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Well, if you

          7  want, I'll stop the Committee meeting, and we'll

          8  take a recess and we'll discuss this.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: It's up to

         10  you. You're the Chair.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Oh, okay. So,

         12  we'll pause for a minute and we'll discuss it. Thank

         13  you.

         14                 (Recess taken.)

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I want to

         16  apologize to my colleague, Councilman Perkins, and I

         17  want to allow him to continue. I made a mistake, and

         18  I apologize. I apologize, and I hope you accept my

         19  apology, even though you're not accepting Diane's,

         20  all right?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Well, you

         22  know, Mr. Chairman, I love you, and no apologies are

         23  necessary. The best part of our relationship is sort

         24  of like a marriage where a good fight always is

         25  followed by love-making. So, I'll see you at the end
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          2  of the hearing.

          3                 In any case, I think I have made my

          4  point in terms of what I consider to be some, at

          5  best, misleading testimony as it relates to the will

          6  of the community, it's elected officials and its

          7  other representatives in terms of the various

          8  organizations that are listed here, and I'm going to

          9  now defer, but I just want to make it clear for the

         10  record that I'm extremely concerned when a

         11  representative of the Administration sits here and

         12  presents us with this type of testimony that I must

         13  say borders on, at best being misleading and close

         14  to being disingenuous, and, frankly, practically an

         15  untruth. I don't want to use the lie word, but I

         16  think we all understand what it is I'm trying to

         17  say.

         18                 So, thank you very much, Mr.

         19  Chairman, for your indulgence.

         20                 MS. WHISK: May I just respond to

         21  that?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Yes.

         23                 MS. WHISK: I apologize for the fact

         24  that it was a little difficult to understand, but I

         25  just want to explain the way we do things at the
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          2  Landmarks Commission, and when we write a report, a

          3  designation report, what we talk about is what we

          4  actually designated, so that all of the people who

          5  spoke, spoke in favor of designating the Cathedral.

          6  Nobody spoke against, in opposition to the

          7  designation of the Cathedral. And we do this, we do

          8  this with our historic district reports, we do this

          9  when we do the Bennett Fald House when only part of

         10  the lot was ultimately designated, people spoke in

         11  favor, and then, yes, you know, there is a part of

         12  it -- but the part that is decalendared is not

         13  subject to the report. It's not the subject of the

         14  report, excuse me. So that everybody who spoke in

         15  favor did speak in favor of the Cathedral. And I

         16  think for our purposes, and the way the Landmarks

         17  Commission does it, it's consistent with all of our

         18  past practice.

         19                 So, I apologize if it's not clear.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Now I take

         21  offense a little bit. No, I'm just saying that I

         22  think Councilman Barron and Councilman Perkins made

         23  their points clear, and I think the apology is

         24  warranted, and I think Councilman Perkins said

         25  clearly he doesn't -- I don't think anyone thinks or
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          2  hopes that anyone sat down and put something down to

          3  be misleading. But, clearly, whatever was

          4  represented is misleading, is very misleading, and

          5  all we want -- if it's a mistake, it's a mistake,

          6  and if it's something that has to be rectified, it

          7  has to be rectified. And whatever is here -- I mean,

          8  our staff does a grid, which is wonderful, and I

          9  think that the landmarks, I think in the future, I

         10  think it would be helpful to all the members in the

         11  case, especially when you're listing so many people

         12  and there's differences between those parts that are

         13  entirely or not entirely, I think that that would be

         14  an easy way, you put down a grid, you know, with 30

         15  people, and you put down who was in favor of its

         16  entirety, and who was in favor of its not entirety.

         17  That's all. I think that that would be helpful.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Mr. Chairman?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: If I may add,

         21  if someone comes to a hearing and says I'm in favor

         22  of landmarking the Cathedral, but not if it doesn't

         23  include the whole site, that's not in favor of

         24  landmarking the Cathedral.

         25                 MS. WHISK: We agree.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: And my

          3  understanding is that some of those who testified,

          4  testified in that manner.

          5                 MS. WHISK: That is not our

          6  recollection. That is what's happening today.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Let me just

          8  say this, we don't need it debated, we can go back

          9  and read the record perhaps, I don't know if you

         10  kept the stenographic record, but in the future, for

         11  the benefit of the members, if someone comes to the

         12  hearing and says, yes, I'm in favor of landmarking

         13  this building, but only if it includes a larger

         14  site, then that should be specifically set forth.

         15  Because otherwise it is misleading. And that's what

         16  people are saying today, whether justifiably or not,

         17  and I don't want to get -- I know you don't think

         18  it's justified and they think it is, but let's just

         19  leave it that if there is that limitation or

         20  reservation in the testimony, it should be so

         21  described to us.

         22                 MS. WHISK: And we agree. But it is

         23  our recollection that that was not said.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I know

         25  there's a disagreement on that.
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          2                 MS. WHISK: Absolutely.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: We don't need

          4  to resolve that at this point.

          5                 MS. WHISK: Okay.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Okay, thank you

          7  very much.

          8                 Do any of my colleagues have any

          9  additional questions for the Landmarks Preservation

         10  Commission?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I just want to

         12  know what's not being said here. There's something

         13  missing from this equation that's not completing the

         14  puzzle for me why the community seems to want the

         15  whole site designated and why the Landmarks

         16  Commission is splitting hairs over words, there's

         17  something missing here and I need to know what that

         18  is.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Mr. Chairman,

         20  if I may? It is apparent, not only from some things

         21  that were suggested, but also from the paper that I

         22  was given during the recess, that there is a plan to

         23  build two buildings on the site.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Now, I also
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          2  gather, to give a complete, from what I am told,

          3  that the Cathedral has agreed on certain limitation

          4  in building those buildings, but I suspect that

          5  those who wanted the whole site landmarked didn't

          6  want those buildings built at all.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: At all.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: So I think to

          9  understand the agenda here is, there's a plan on the

         10  part of the Cathedral, I guess to raise money, maybe

         11  for other reasons, we're going to hear it, they're

         12  going to be here, to build two buildings on the

         13  site. That's the underlying issue.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. So,

         15  that's the underlying issue that's creating all of

         16  this quiet hostility in between areas. I'm being

         17  polite.

         18                 But clearly, just to support my

         19  colleagues and the community, if this was to be

         20  brought out, I guess we would have heard that

         21  talking with the Cathedral representatives, but I

         22  would again, you know, ask that Landmarks indicate

         23  fully exactly what the desire of the community was,

         24  and I would agree with my fellow Council members

         25  that that was not indicated here and had not people
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          2  intervened, we would have gone on with information

          3  that was not fully complete, and I think that that

          4  hurts the Committee and it hurts Landmarks'

          5  reputation as well, which has been stellar to this

          6  point.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you very

          9  much.

         10                 Do any of my colleagues have any

         11  other questions?

         12                 MS. WHISK: If I can say once more --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Sure.

         14                 MS. WHISK: -- Just because I think we

         15  do have an excellent relationship with this

         16  Committee and we respect you very much, I regret the

         17  fact that there is this feeling about the report.

         18  This is the way we do things. We can certainly go

         19  back and take another look.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I would

         21  differ. This is not the way you've done it before,

         22  and I think that in due respect to Council Member

         23  Koppell, Perkins and Barron, they all asked you and

         24  said that you haven't done it before, and we would

         25  not ask you to say that you've done it this way
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          2  before, and let's not do it this way again, and

          3  leave it at that, as opposed to splitting hairs

          4  again. We're just going down a path that is not

          5  necessary, and we do have a good relationship. We

          6  have asked you to do things that you've done, but

          7  this clearly is not part of your norm, and let's

          8  leave it at that.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I just want

         11  to make a brief remark.

         12                 You know, I suspect that this is a

         13  reflection of the other issues that are of concern

         14  here, including the decalendaring of the rest of the

         15  close, this sort of, forgive me for my language

         16  which, you know, is not -- well, listen, this thing

         17  seems to be underhandedly handled, okay? That's how

         18  I feel about it. I want to be very frank about that.

         19                 This misrepresenting elected

         20  officials, misrepresenting community-based

         21  organizations that have histories of credibility and

         22  respect, to me is, it just defies good intentions

         23  and it makes me suspect about this whole process and

         24  about why we are here like this to begin with, and

         25  while my colleagues will say that we had a good
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          2  relationship, I think this puts a significant dent

          3  in that relationship, as far as I'm concerned,

          4  individually, and I just want to go on record for

          5  that, because I don't trust what is underlying this

          6  here right now. I'm even more concerned about this

          7  than I was before.

          8                 MS. WHISK: Can I just, when I respond

          9  I will use the word process, and I just want to

         10  respond to the process, because I know there were

         11  questions about that as well.

         12                 We had several public hearings, and

         13  the Cathedral made these presentations at these

         14  public hearings, both to our commissioners, and to

         15  the public who are in a room showing these sites

         16  that were going to be decalendared and the

         17  approximate -- they will talk to this, because I am

         18  not the expert on the two sites, but, you know,

         19  showing envelopes of where construction could occur.

         20                 There was a discussion about mention

         21  of a Design Committee that would be set up in the

         22  future. I know that the Cathedral also announced to

         23  the Community Board, I don't know how many times and

         24  they will speak to that. So, I think that, I know

         25  that the community is very concerned and they're not
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          2  happy with the Landmarks' decision on this, but I

          3  don't think that it's because the Landmarks

          4  Commission did this without them knowing about it.

          5  This was all a public process. And as you well know,

          6  people often disagree with the Landmarks Commission.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Okay.

          8                 Just so that whoever is in attendance

          9  understands the menu for the rest of the hearing, I

         10  had not anticipated that we'd be here this long, and

         11  I had scheduled something of urgent matter in my

         12  district that I have to be back at 1:30. What we're

         13  going to do is we're going to take as much testimony

         14  as we can today, until 1:00, and then I'm going to

         15  -- if we finish, we finish, which I don't think is

         16  likely. I don't think likely. But we'll get through

         17  it and then what most likely will happen is that

         18  we're going to have to recess it and pick up on

         19  where we left off.

         20                 Thank you very much.

         21                 I'm going to call up the next panel,

         22  so please come up. Carolyn Kent; Elizabeth Ashby;

         23  Marie Kalson; Christarel Gough. Is that right?

         24                 MS. GOUGH: No.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: What do you want
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          2  from a guy from Borough Park.

          3                 MS. GOUGH: Nobody knows that.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Does anyone say

          5  it right?

          6                 MS. GOUGH: Very few.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: You made my day.

          8                 Christabel Gough. I think we need

          9  some more chairs. Tom DeMott. Thomas Kappner, and

         10  Kate Wood. We need a lot of chairs. I'll help you.

         11                 Ladies and gentlemen, I'm not going

         12  to go into detail repeating the same thing that I

         13  mentioned earlier. But, again, I would appreciate, I

         14  know that you all feel very strongly about this

         15  issue, and that's why you're here today, but I also

         16  would like very much for you to keep your remarks,

         17  we're going to time this to two minutes, but I'm

         18  asking you again to please keep your remarks to

         19  things that were not said earlier.

         20                 I don't think that serves anyone in

         21  any way, other than the fact that I know you'd like

         22  to have the opportunity to say strongly how you

         23  feel, but given the time constraints, I'd like to

         24  focus on issues or points that have not been raised

         25  earlier, and I'd appreciate it, and instead of
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          2  putting you in the predicament of having to choose

          3  who goes first, we'll just do what Mr. South

          4  suggested earlier, if you want to come up you can

          5  pick them, but we're just going to pick somebody out

          6  of the hat.

          7                 Okay, Marie Kalson.

          8                 MS. KALSON: I'm a member of the

          9  Morningside Heights Historic District Committee, and

         10  I've lived in the neighborhood for over 40 years. My

         11  children went to Cathedral School, but that's not

         12  the reason I am against this. And all of my

         13  colleagues here will say why they are against

         14  landmarking anything less than the whole block, and

         15  that's my position, and I'll let them speak more

         16  eloquently for me.

         17                 MR. DeMOTT: Tom DeMott. Just for the

         18  record, David Dinkins does work for Columbia now, I

         19  think that should be considered in terms of his

         20  image, and also Community Board 9 voted unanimously

         21  for the complete designation of the Board.

         22                 In terms of the Cathedral, what is a

         23  significant issue here, is the importance of open

         24  space and the freedom that open space allows. There

         25  are peacocks wandering around there and there are

                                                            71

          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  homeless people wandering around there, and that's

          3  part of the Cathedral's image, and for those who

          4  went to school there, that was an important part of

          5  it.

          6                 The Columbia University Campus,

          7  there's no wandering around there. Basically what

          8  happens at that University is it's been privatized,

          9  and in the June hearing of this particular

         10  commission, you discussed the development of these

         11  two high-rise towers, but you didn't note that this

         12  is not the Cathedral that's developing, this is

         13  Columbia University that's getting these towers on a

         14  99-year lease, and this is Columbia University, the

         15  privatizer, and what we are worried about is will

         16  this close become a gated community? Will Harlemites

         17  be ID'd at the door as they are now at Columbia.

         18  Those who can see that the Cathedral, and those who

         19  want you to reverse this decision, to ruin the

         20  public space and to privatize, the Cathedral needs

         21  to breathe, the music needs to echo without huge

         22  buildings around it. We need an alternative, a

         23  genuine alternative to a towering corporate

         24  structure that's motivated by greed.

         25                 We're not talking about some bouja
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          2  concept of the views of the Cathedral, as you

          3  reduced the issue to in your hearing, we're talking

          4  about the essential spirit of the hearing, we need

          5  peacocks, the homeless, we need our park, and we

          6  need you to preserve the whiff of freedom, which is

          7  getting harder and harder for people in Harlem who

          8  face being run out of their community.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you.

         10                 MS. KENT: (Not identified for the

         11  record.) First, Chair Felder, to quickly say this:

         12  On July 13th, having carefully read that first page

         13  of the designation report, I sent an e-mail to Bob

         14  Tierney saying, in some way it has happened that an

         15  erroneous and perhaps even dishonest picture has

         16  been given by this designation report, and it must

         17  be corrected, because of all things that the

         18  Commission must never be guilty of, it would be

         19  putting an erroneous, and a known to be erroneous

         20  report into our City's archives. And City brings me,

         21  and I had no response to that, apparently it was

         22  just disregarded, and I am so glad it's come before

         23  us today and I hope it never happens again. And that

         24  takes me to my point, that the question really is,

         25  besides all the substantive and truthful things
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          2  about peacocks, the question is, why would this

          3  Subcommittee ever want to stand behind an attempt on

          4  the part of Landmarks to make a City authorization

          5  of this private scheme on decalendared strips of

          6  land in the face of such strong public opposition,

          7  in the face of 17, on its first day of hearings,

          8  longstanding preservation groups coming forward to

          9  speak against anything but the full close, and

         10  anything but the full close because it would be then

         11  all changes for the entire precinct of the Cathedral

         12  would be subject to public hearing.

         13                 Then without any public hearing on

         14  it, the Commission turns around, narrowly suggests a

         15  designation simply of the footprint of the

         16  Cathedral, and decalendars the two wanted building

         17  sites without public hearing, knowing that those who

         18  had all been present at the Cathedral sought another

         19  solution. This has not been straightforward, and

         20  yet, they are speaking for the City.

         21                 We can't allow a City agency to just

         22  ram something down the throat of the City, and let's

         23  decide that here so that we don't all have to come

         24  back and speak to the full Council.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I just want
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          2  to for the record be clear, because the report that

          3  we have here from the Landmarks Preservation

          4  Commission indicates that Manhattan Community Board

          5  9 was in support of this designation as it has been

          6  presented, and my understanding is that in fact the

          7  Board 9 is only in support of the full designation.

          8                 For the record I want to raise it

          9  because I want to make sure, because this report

         10  comes from the Landmarks Preservation Commission,

         11  has been translated into our own report, our own

         12  report which is to inform the members on what the

         13  status of the project is in terms of various levels

         14  that have to make a comment, indicate that the

         15  community board supports this designation as

         16  presented; is that in fact the case?

         17                 MS. KENT: (Not identified for the

         18  record.) It is not the case. The words Cathedral

         19  Church do not even appear in this unanimous

         20  resolution.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I think this

         22  is important, Mr. Chairman, to get Landmarks

         23  Preservation Commission to clarify why their report

         24  misidentifies, or at least contributes to some

         25  confusion about the position of the community board.
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          2                 Is there anybody here from the

          3  Commission that can let us know for sure if, in

          4  fact, the Community Board approved the designation,

          5  as it's been presented?

          6                 Just get it on the record, that's

          7  all.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Somebody from

          9  Landmarks, just take one of the mics here, and just

         10  answer the question as to what the Community Board

         11  approved or didn't approve. And identify yourself.

         12                 MR. SILBERMAN: Hi. It's Mark

         13  Silberman, from Landmarks Commission. And I'm

         14  looking at this now, and let me just read it

         15  quickly. It says that Community Board 9 adopted the

         16  following resolution, Cathedral Church of St. John

         17  the Divine, by a vote of 29 in favor. It describes

         18  the close, the close, it describes the buildings on

         19  the close, "Resolved, Community Board urges

         20  Landmarks Preservation Commission to designate the

         21  entire Cathedral as a landmark."

         22                 Okay? That's what it says. And the

         23  issue, let me just finish reading, and what is not

         24  stated in here is they are opposed to the

         25  designation of the Cathedral by itself. That is what
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          2  we were trying to explain before, which is that the

          3  Cathedral --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: What you're

          5  telling me is that you interpreted this, you

          6  interpreted this as simply designating the

          7  Cathedral, and assumed that that excluded the close?

          8  Are you saying that --

          9                 MR. SILBERMAN: No, what we are saying

         10  is that at the public hearing where the proposal by

         11  the Church to dedesignate a portion of the site and

         12  keep the rest calendared, and designate as a

         13  landmark only the land under which the Church

         14  stands, was a proposal, these people said --

         15  basically we read this as we would still want the

         16  entire close designated, but that does not translate

         17  into we oppose the designation.

         18                 And let me give an example --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Oh --

         20                 MR. SILBERMAN: Councilman, let me

         21  finish. Can I finish my explanation?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Let me just

         23  be clear, you know they wanted the entire close --

         24                 MR. SILBERMAN: Correct.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: -- Including
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          2  the Cathedral designated. But that doesn't mean that

          3  they didn't want it designated, undesignated.

          4                 MR. SILBERMAN: This is a common

          5  problem, Council member.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Do you

          7  honestly believe that Community Board 9 does not

          8  want the close designated? Do you honestly believe

          9  that? Yes or no?

         10                 MR. SILBERMAN: What is the --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Do you

         12  believe they want the close designated?

         13                 MR. SILBERMAN: They want the close

         14  designated.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay. Why

         16  would you give us a report that reflects that they

         17  only want the Cathedral?

         18                 MR. SILBERMAN: Because what the

         19  report reflects is what the Commission's action is.

         20  And for example, --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you

         22  very much. I appreciate it.

         23                 MR. SILBERMAN: When we designate a

         24  historic district --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: You don't
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          2  have to tell me anymore. It's clear to me. It's

          3  clear to me that you are not --

          4                 MR. SILBERMAN: -- Many members of the

          5  community --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: You are not

          7  interested in accurately representing the will of

          8  that community. What you are interested in is

          9  accurately representing your own agenda. And it is

         10  offensive for you to sit here to me, with all due

         11  respect to my colleagues, for you to do that the way

         12  that you're doing it, period. And you should know

         13  better.

         14                 MR. SILBERMAN: And if I could just

         15  finish my thought, which is that often times, for

         16  example, on historic districts, many people are in

         17  favor of a larger district, and the Commission

         18  designates a smaller district, and that designation

         19  report reflects the fact that people are in favor of

         20  the district, and we do not characterize every

         21  single person's position on every single decision

         22  about a decision to take out a building or include a

         23  building. And that is why we apologize if it appears

         24  to be complex. This is a more complex situation than

         25  before.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Wait. Hold

          3  on. Don't insult my intelligence. This is not that

          4  complex.

          5                 MR. SILBERMAN: It does reflect the

          6  way this Commission --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: It's very

          8  simple. You decided what the community designated,

          9  not the community. That's not that complex to me.

         10  It's very simple. And I don't want you to

         11  mischaracterize my understanding on something that

         12  is very simple. The community wanted the close, and

         13  that's what they voted on, but you reflected

         14  something different in your report, something

         15  misleading that is consistent with the testimony

         16  that you gave, and it seems to be consistent with

         17  some other corrupt practices that may have been

         18  involved in this whole procedure.

         19                 MR. SILBERMAN: I would respectfully

         20  disagree and take offense to any insinuation that

         21  there is any corrupt practice at the Landmarks

         22  Commission.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Mr. Chairman?

         24  Mr. Chairman?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Yes.

                                                            80

          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: We were just

          3  given a piece of paper that has at the top the

          4  heading "Community Board No. 9, Manhattan.

          5  Resolution Re: Cathedral Church of St. John the

          6  Divine."

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Right.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Where did it

          9  come from?

         10                 The Sergeant-At-Arms gave it to us

         11  just now, who gave us this piece of paper?

         12                 MS. KENT: (Not identified for the

         13  record.) I'm the Co-Chair of the Landmarks Committee

         14  of Board 9.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Okay, so this

         16  is an official paper.

         17                 MS. KENT: (Not identified for the

         18  record.) Oh, yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Could the

         20  gentleman from the Landmarks Commission please

         21  respond?

         22                 Because I really think that my

         23  colleague Councilman Perkins has a good point here.

         24                 I am reading the resolution. The

         25  resolution says the following. I am reading the
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          2  words of the resolution that you were I think just

          3  looking at.

          4                 "Be It Resolved, that Community Board

          5  No. 9 urges the Landmarks Preservation Commission to

          6  designate the entire Cathedral close as a

          7  landmark..." -- I'm leaving out the description --

          8   ..."as a landmark and in this way..." -- I'm

          9  reading the words -- ..."and in this way sustain the

         10  Commission's oversight and guarantee of public

         11  hearing on any development which might be proposed

         12  for this significant site now in perfect harmony

         13  with itself in serving all of New York City as a

         14  magnificent common ground of international renown

         15  for worship, mediation and celebration."

         16                 Now, that being the resolution, it

         17  says to designate the entire site, and then

         18  specifically says, in this way to sustain the

         19  Commission's oversight and guarantee public hearing

         20  on any development which might be proposed for this

         21  site; how can that be reconciled with what the

         22  Commission did, which is not to designate the entire

         23  site, and to allow for the development of those two

         24  parcels without, certainly not with oversight of the

         25  Landmarks Commission, maybe there would be other
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          2  oversight, but in other words, to then say, taking

          3  this and then say, well, Community 9 was in favor of

          4  what we did, is simply, it's not only misleading,

          5  it's not true.

          6                 MR. SILBERMAN: The Commission views

          7  that testimony as it would a decision, a testimony

          8  by community board to include a vacant lot in the

          9  boundaries of historic district and when they say we

         10  think you should include the boundaries to prevent

         11  development or include development, that does not,

         12  to us, translate as we are opposed to any

         13  designation, and that we understand that people want

         14  us to designate more, which is typically what we

         15  hear from most people. They want us to designate

         16  more, not less. And, so, it is not -- all I'm

         17  saying, this is not -- interpreting this is not that

         18  different from what we do when we hear testimony

         19  from districts, people want us to do more, that

         20  doesn't to us translate as we oppose anything less.

         21  And I understand that people are now coming forward

         22  and saying we oppose anything less. That was not

         23  necessarily the testimony that was presented at the

         24  hearing. They wanted more, which we understand,

         25  again, we're used to hearing that.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Well, frankly

          3  speaking, I think at the very least it should have

          4  been expressed that they testified in favor of

          5  designation, but of the whole site.

          6                 But you see, this is different than

          7  just saying we want the vacant lot included. This is

          8  a statement that says we need the vacant lot

          9  included or whatever, the vacant space included, to

         10  preserve the landmark nature of the site. And if

         11  that's not done, you're not preserving the landmark

         12  nature of the site, and I think that's what

         13  Councilman Perkins is upset about, and I think he's

         14  entirely justified.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Well, I want to

         16  thank all of you for being here. And because of the

         17  constraints of time, we're going to lay this meeting

         18  over, and those of you, I apologize to those of you

         19  that didn't have a chance to speak. We're going to

         20  hold on -- I see Elizabeth Ashby, Thomas Kappner,

         21  Kate Wood and Christable --

         22                 MS. GOUGH: Gough.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I was going to do

         24  it right. I have to say, I lied again. I was going

         25  to mess it up. Christopher Gough, we will pick up at
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          2  the next meeting, as well as those that represent

          3  the Cathedral will be, and I hearby layover the

          4  meeting til October 23rd.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Mr. Chairman,

          6  before you close, lay this over, because I just want

          7  to make a comment for the record.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I don't want to

          9  get in another fight with you one minute, then

         10  you'll tell me you love me and you'll see me after

         11  the meeting.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I just want

         13  to be clear, because you know we came to vote on

         14  this matter, and I would like to see a vote on this

         15  matter. I don't see a need to hold it over, and I

         16  think it's unfair if we hold it over unnecessarily,

         17  especially in light of the testimony that has been

         18  presented. So, for the record, I would like to

         19  request that there be a vote.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I appreciate your

         21  comments, and I understand. The reason I laid it

         22  over was three-fold probably. First of all,

         23  unfortunately you were here on time, which I

         24  appreciate very much, but some of the members were

         25  not here on time, we couldn't get the meeting
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          2  started on time, and maybe, maybe we could have had

          3  an opportunity to hear from everyone. There are at

          4  least four people who haven't been heard, but I know

          5  that those that are opposed would have been happy to

          6  give up their right to stay for the vote, but there

          7  are those who are in favor, as well, who have not

          8  had a right to have an opportunity to speak and I'm

          9  late. I have to leave. I said that I'd have to

         10  leave. I thought I would leave at 12:30, but I have

         11  a personal emergency that I have to be back in the

         12  district at 1:00. So, I'm sorry, I just can't do it

         13  today. And the meeting is adjourned. Thank you.

         14                 (Hearing concluded at 1:15 p.m.)
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